Case 2:04-cv-01599-JCC  Document1  Filed 07/20/2004 Page 1 of 35

* | NN A O i
" 04-CV-01599-CMP ——FILED ___ ENTERED
41 . ——LODGED____ RECEIVED
5 JuL 20 2004 DI
. CLERK f:; SUIIESAI'.II-!.II-#_&F('QUHT
6 WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON
DEPUTY
7
8
9 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
10 WESTEEN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON
11 AT SEATTLE
"\ 12
e )
| o) oy 4 1599
T‘S 1 Behalf of Adl Others Similarly Situated, % CV 1
Y Plaintift } CLASS ACTION
15 ! )
Vi, }
. 16 )
g KERRY K. KILLINGER, THOMAS W. ) CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOIRX
17 | CASEY, DEANNA W. OPPENHEIMER, y VIOLATIONS OF THE FEDERAL
O WILLIAM W. L()T‘:I(iBRAI{E, CRAIG L ) SECURITIES LAWS
‘59 18 CHAPMAN, JAMES G, VANASEKR, )
MICITELLE MCCARTIIY, and -
~—— 19 | WASHINGTON MUTUAL,, INC, ) DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
)
M 20 Defendants. )
21 )
22
23
24
25
26

COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATION OF TLIE FEDEIRRAL
SECURITIES LAWS

DOCSYZ 133272




[ R - - B - S e . T

e N - B o o L L L I o L el T e S S Y
[ B I - U T N oS B = E o B - N - N D P B N S

I
Case 2:04-cv-01599-JCC  Document 1  Filed 07/20/2004  Page 2 of 35

INTRODUCTION

" 1. This is a federal class action on behalf of purchazers of the securitics and/or
sellers of put options of Washington Mutual, Ine. (“Washington Mutual,” or the “Company™)
between April 15, 2003 and Junc 28, 2004, inclusive (the “Class Period”), seeking to pursue

temedies under the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”).

OVERYIEW

2. By Apnl 2003, Washington Mutnal had grown from $21 billion in banking assets
in 1990 1o over $261 billion in asscts under management. After recently making almost $25
billion in major banking acquisitions, including acquisitions of New York-bascd Dime Bancorp
($5.3 billion in cash and stock) and Flect Morigage Corp. ($7.5 billion in cash), Washington
Mutual emerged as one of the 10 larpest VLS. banks (measured by asscts); by far the largest
Savings & Loan and loan servicing cntity and the second largest mortpage-loan orginator in the
country. Morcover, by the meeption of the Class Period, Washington Mutual had publicly

promoted itself as a “Category Killer” - - the “Wal-Mart of Consumer Finance.” According to

| defendants, Washington Mutual’s plan for profits and disciplined management would allow it to
“revoluliomze™ consumer banking,.

3. Accordingly, throughout the Class Pened, dcfendants consistently represented
that Wasmngton Mutual could achieve organic growth regardless of any expected interest rate
incrcases because of its dynamic business model. In addition, defendanls also claimed that they
engaged in sophisticated financial hedping strategies that allowed Washington Mutual to

diversify any additional risk that would otherwise subject the Company to disruplive volatility.
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¥

4. Unbeknownst to investors, however, throughout the Class Period the Company
was suffering from a host of undisclosed adverse factors which were negatively impacting its
business, and which would foresceably cause Washington Mutual to report declining financial
results, matcrially less than the market expectations defendants had caused and cultivated, In
patticular;

. At all times during the Class Period, it was matenally false and misleading for
defendants to claimn that defendants were able to properly hedge the Company’s financial
and market risk.

. At all titnes during the Class Petiod, il was materially falsc and misleading for
defendants to claim that Washington Mutual maintained a unique business strategy that
would allow the Company to achieve growth and profitability in light of forcsceable
changes m market conditions for interest ratcs.

. At all times during the Class Period, it was matenally false and misleading for
dciendants Lo ¢laim that defcndants maintained adcquate systems of internal [nancial,
opetational or market controls, so as to assure investors that defendants public statements
were true and accurate at all limes.

. At all times durnng the Class Pertod, 1t was materially {alse and misleading for
defendants to claim that Washington Mutual’s $25 billion acquisiion spree was being
integrated seamlessly mto the Company and that, as a resull, Washington Mutual was
operating according to guidance sponsored and/or cndorsed hy defendants.

. As a result of the aforementioned adverse conditions which defendants failed to

disclose, throughout the Class Period, defendants lacked any reasonable basis to claim

that Washington Mutual was operating according to plan, that sufficient sources of

funding were achieved and/or available to Washington Mutual or that the Company could

niaintain profitability or cven remain a viable entity in the foreseeablc near-term.

5. On June 29, 2004, however, mvestors lcarned the (ruth about Washington Mutual
after defendants issued a press release announcing a very significant eamings and net income
shortfall which far exceeded any guidance previously sponsored and endotsed by defendants.

According to this release, incrcascs in inlerest rates had, i fact, impacted the Company’s

mortgage banking business to such an exient that earnings for the full year were revised to as low
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ag $3.00 per share, compared to up to $4.80 per sharc guidance provided at the inception of the
Class Pcriod.  Also, according to defendants, they had not properly hedged the Company’s

interest rate risk such that it was now having a material adverse impact on Washington Mutual.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. The claims asserted heren arise under and pursuant to Scetions 10(b) and 20(a) of
the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78t(a)] and Rule 10b-5 promulpated thereunder by
the United States Sccurities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

7. This Court has junsdiction over the subject malter of this action pursuant to 28
U.5.C. §§ 1331 and 1337, and Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78aa).

8. Venue is proper in this Distnet pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange Act, and
28 US.C §1391(h). Washinglon Mutual maintains its principal place of business in this
Drstnet and many of the acts and practices complained of herein occurred in substantial part in
this District.

9. In connection with the acls alleged in this complaint, defendants, dircetly or
indirectly, used the means and instrumcntalities of interstate commerce, including, but not
limited to, the mails, interstatc telephone communications and the facilities of the national

securities markets.

PARTIES
10.  Plaintiff | N - sct forth in the accompanying certification,
incorporatcd by reference herein, purchased the securities and/or sold put options of Washington

Mutual at artificially inflaicd prices during the Class Period, and has been damaged thereby.
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11.  Deflendant Washington Mutual, Inc. is a Washington corporation with its principal
place of busincss a1 1201 Third Avenue, Seattle, Washington. According to the Company’s
press releases, Washington Mutual is a rctailer of financial services that provides a diversiticd
line of products and services to conswmers and commercial clients. At March 31, 2004,
Washington Mutual and its subsidiaries had assets of $280.77 billion, and currently operates
more than 2,400 retail banking, mortgage lending, commereial hanking and financial services

offices throughout the United States.

2. Defendant Kerry K. Killinger (“Killinger™) maintamed dominance and control
{| over the Company during the Class Period and, throughout this time, consolidared powcr over
the Company by simulianeously holding the officcs of Chaiman of the Board of Dircclors,
President and Chicl Executive Officer of Washington Mutual.

13, Defendant Thomas W. Casey (“Casey™) was during the Class Period, Exceutive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

14.  Defendant Deauna W. Oppenheimer (“Oppenheimer”) was during the Class
Period, President of the Consumer Group, the Company’s other division.

15.  Defendant William W. Longbrake (“Longbrake™ was, during the Class Period,

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Controller of Washington Mutual.

16. Defendant Craig I. Chapman (“Chapman™)} was during the Class Period, President
of the Company’s Commercial Group and Chicl’ Administrative QfMicer of the Company.

17. Defendant James G. Vanasek (“Vanasek™) was during the Class Period, Exccutive

Vice President and Chicf Enterprisc Risk Officer of the Company.
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18. Defendant Michelle McCarthy (“McCarthy") was during the Class Peniod, Senior
Vice President and Market Risk Manager of the Company, having assumed this position on or
about Aprit 28, 2003,

19.  The defendants referenced above in 94 12 - 18 are referred to herein as the
“Individual Defendants.”

20.  Bceanse of the Individual Delendants’ positions with the Company, they had

access to the adverse undisclosed information about its busincss, operations, products,
operational trends, financial statements, hedging and related activities, markets and present and
" future business prospects vig access to mmtemal corporate documents (including the Company’s
opcrating plans, budgets and forecasts and reports of actual operations compared thereto),
convcrsations and conncctions with othcr corporate officers and employces, altendance at
management and Board of Directors mectings and commillees thereof and via reports and other
information provided to them in connection therewith.

21. It is appropriate to treat the Individual Defcndants as a group for pleading
purposes and to presume that the false, misleading and incomplete information conveyed in the
Company’s public hlings, press releagses and other publications as alleged herein arc the
collective actions of the narrowly defined group of defendants identified above. Each of the
above officers of Washigton Mutual, by virtuc of their high-level positions with the Company,
directly participated in the management of the Compuny, was directly involved in the day-to-day
operations of the Company at thc highest levels and was privy to confidential proprietary
information concernming the Company and its business, operations, products, growth, financial

statements, hedging and related activitics and financtal condition, as alleged herein. Said
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defendants were involved in drafting, producing, reviewing and/or disscminating the false and
misleading statements and mformation alleged herein, were aware, or deliberately disregarded,
that the false and misleading statements were being issued regarding the Company, and approved
or ratified these statements, in violation of the federal scourities laws.

22 As officers and controlling persons of a publicly-held company whose securitics
were, and are, registered with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act, and was traded on the New
York Stock Exchangc (the “NYSE"), and governed by the provisions of the federal securities
laws, the Individual Delendants cach had a duly to disseminale promptly, accurate and truthful
information with respect to the Company’s financial condition and performance, growth,
operations, hedgng and related activities, finaneial statements, business, products, markets,
management, earnings and present and future business prospects, and to correct any previously-
issued statements that had become materially mislecading or untrue, so that the market price of
the Company’s publicly-traded sceuritics would be based upon {ruthful and accurate information.
The Individual Defendants® misrepresentations and omissions during the Class Period violaled
these specific requirements and obligations.

23, The Individual Defendanis participated m the drafting, preparation, and/or
approval of the vanous pubhic and shareholder and investor reports and other communications
complained of herein and werc awarﬁ of, or deliberately disregarded, the misstatements
confained therein and omissions therefrom, and were awarc of their matenally false and
misleading nature. Because of their Board membership and/or executive and imanagerial
positions with Washington Mutual, each of the Individual Defendants had access to the adverse

undisclosed information about Washington Mutual’s business prospects and financial condition
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and performancc as particularized herein and knew (or deliberately disregarded) that these
2 ||adverse facts rendered the positive representations made by or about Washington Mutual and its
3 || busincss issucd or adopted by the Company materially false and misleading.

4 24, The Individual Defendants, because of their posihions of controf and authonty as

olficers and/or dircctors of the Company, were ablc to and did control the content of the various

SEC filings, press releases and other public statcments pertaining to the Company during the

Class Period. Each Individual Defendant was provided with copies of the documents alleged

L= e -

herem to be misleadmg prior to or shortly after their 1ssuance and/or had the ability and/or
10 || opportunity to prevent their issuance or cause them to be corrected. Accordingly, each of the
11 |} Individual Pefendants is responsible for the accuracy of the public reports and releases detailed

12 [l herein and is therefore primarily liable for the representations contained therein.

13 25.  Each of the defendants is liable as a participant in a fraudulent scheme and course

14
of business that operated as a fraud or deccit on purchasers of Washington Mutual secunties

15
and/or scllers of put options by disscminating materially [alse and misleading statements and/or

16
17 concealing malenal adverse facts. The scheme: (i) deceived the investing public regarding

18 || Washington Mutual’s busincss, opcrations, management and the intrinsic value of Washington

19 || Mutual securities; and (iii) caused plaintff and other members of the Class to purchase

20 Washington Mutual securities and/or seli put options at artificially inflated prices.

21

) PLAINTIFF’S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

23 26.  Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil

24 || Procedure 23¢a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class, consisting of all thosc who purchased or

25 |[ stherwise acquired the sccuritics and/or sold put options of Washington Mutual belween April

26
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15, 2003 and June 28, 2004, inclusive (the “Class™) and who \I:vere damaged thereby. Excluded
from the Class are defendiants, the ofticers and divectors of the Company, at all relevant times,
members of their immediate families and their legal representatives, heirs, successors or assigns
and any cntity in which defendants have or had a controlling intcrest.

27. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is
mpracticable.  Throughowt the Class Penod, Washington Mutuzl common shares were achively
traded on the NYSE. As of April 30, 2003, the Company had over 930 million shares issued and
outstanding. While the cxact numbcer of Class members is unknown to plaintiff at this time and
can only be ascertained through appropnate discovery, plainttff believes that there are hundreds
or thousands of members in the proposcd Class. Record owners and other members of the Class
may be identified from records maintained by Washmglon Multual or s transfer agent and may
be notfied of the pendency of this action by mail, using the form of notice similar to that
customarily used in securitics class actions.

28.  PlaintifT’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as all
members of the Class arg similarly affected by defendants’ wrongful conduct in violatien of
federal law that is complained of hercin.

29.  Plaintilf will fairly and adequately prolect the mierests of the members of the
Class and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and sceuritics litigation.

30. Common questions of law and facl exist as to all members of the Class and
predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. Among the

guestions of law and fact common to the Class are:

COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL
BECURITIES LAWS ¥ -

DOCS213327vE




—

[ o e = T T T e S R R
= T R R = T - e - - L L = S o v N N~ L= S - T R = S F S N 5 N 6 ]

I

Case 2:04-cv-01599-JCC  Document1l  Filed 07/20/2004 Page 10 of 35

(a) whether the federal securitics laws were violated by defendants’ acts as
alleged herein;

{b) whether statements made by defendants to the investing public during the
Class Period misrepresented material [acts about the business, operations and management of
Washington Mutual, and

(c) te what exilent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the
" proper measure of damages.

31. A class action i3 supcrior to all othet available methods for the [air and efficient
adjudication of this conlroversy since joinder of all members is impracticable. Furthermore, as
the damages suffored by individual Class members may be relalively small, the expense and
burden ol individual htigation make it 1mpossible for members of the Class to individually
redress the wrongs done o them. There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as

a class aclion,

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

Defendants’ Materially False and Misleading
Statements Made During the Class Period

32 1Q:03 Results. On Apnl 15, 2003, the beginning of the Class Pcriod,
Washington Mutual published a relcasc on Business Wire which purported to announce “record”
financial results for the first quarter of 2003, the period ended March 31, 2003, in part, as
follows:

“Washington Mutual entered 2003 in un excellent position and we're poised to

continue the momentum as the year progresscs,” said Kerry Killinger, the

company’s chairman, president and CEQ. “Qur record-breaking first quarter
results reflect the strength of our underlying strategy of serving the broad middle
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market by providing the combination of great value and efficient, friendly service.

We are extremely proud of the first quarter results that our talented employees
. kel [ 1

produced.” (Emphasis added.)

33, The Company’s April 15, 2003 release alse purporied lo provide near-term
garnings and revenue guidance, in part, as follows:

Outlook

“Despite the current challenges both domestically and ntemationally, our
management team fully expects 2003 will be another record year for Washington
Mutual,” Killinger said. “Our business fundamentals remain strong and credit
quality continues to perforn in line with management’s cxpectations.”

“Our primary focus for the foreseeable future will be successfully executing our
key business strategies, which are focused on intcrnal growth and increcascd
productivity, and continuing to make progress loward our Jong-term goal of
building the nation’s leading retailer of financial services to the broad middlc
market,”

34. Killinger CNBC Intervicw, The following day, April 16, 2003, dcfendant
Killinger appeared on the finuncial news cable-television network, CNBC, and granted an
mterview during which he continued to condition the market to believe that Washinglon Mutual
was opcrating according o plan, and that the expected rise in interest rates would not have a
foreseeable matenal adverse impact on Washington Mutual, as follows:

[W]e carefully manage all of the various portfolios we're in and we walch the
pational housing market very carcfully,. We do not have concerns that there is a
housing bubblc being crealed on a national basis, However, you know, at certain
localities around the country we have been watching things very carefully and
have adjusted our underwriting standards in ccrtain parts of the country when
that’s appropriate. 8o, overall, you may have noticed that our credit quality
actually improved in the most recent quarter. So we’re very comfortable where
things arc at this point.

' Unless otherwise indicated, emphasis has been added.
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35.  The stalements contained in Washington Mutual’s April 15, 2003 rclcase and
thosc madc by defendants during the Company’s 1Q:03 conference call, refersnced above, were
cach matcrially false and misleading when made and were known by defendants lo be false or
were deliberately disrcgarded as such thereby at that time, for the [ollowing reasons, among
athers:

(a) At all times dunng the Class Period, it was materially false and misleading
for defendants to clanm that defendants were able to properly hedge the Company’s financial and
market risk;

(b) At all timcs during the Class Period, it was matenally false and misleading
for defendants to claim that Waghington Mutual maintained a unique business strategy that
would altow the Company to achieve growth and profitability in light of foreseeable changces in
market conditions for interest rates;

(c) At all imes during the Class Pertod, it was materially false and misleading
for defendants to claim that defendants maintained adequate systcms of internal financial,
operational or market controls, so as to assure investors that defendants public stalemenis were
true and accurate at all limes;

(d)  Atall times during the Class Period, il was materially false and mislcading
for defendants to claim that Washington Mutual’s $25 billion acquisition spree was being
integrated seamlessly mto the Company and that, as a rcsult, Washington Mutual was operating
according to guidancc sponsorcd and/or cndorsed by defendants; and

(e) As a result of the aforementioned adverse conditions which defendants

failed to disclosc, throughout the Class Period, defendants lacked any reasonable basis to claim
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that Washmgton Mutual was operating according to plan, that sufficient sources of funding werce
achieved and/or available to Washington Mutual or that the Company could mainiam
profitability or even remain a viable entity in the foreseeable near-lerm.

36. 1Q:03 Form 10-Q. On or about May 15, 2003, defendants filed with the SEC the
Company’s quarterly financial report, pursuant to Form 10-Q. In addition lo making many of the
same, or substantially similar, reprcsentations to those made previously on April 15, 2003, the
1Q:03 Form 10-Q also stated, in pari, Lhe following:

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements are unaudited and include
the accounts of Washington Mutual, Tne. {together with its subsidianes
“Washington Mutual” or the “Company™). Washinglon Mutual’s accounting and
financial reporting policics arc in accordance with accounting principles gencrally
accepted in the United Statcs of America. The information fumnished in these
interim stalements reflects all adjustments that are, in the optmion of mandgemcnt
necessary for a fair statement of the results for such pertods...

& *® *

The Company continues to enhance its scgment reporting process methodologies.
Changes to the operating segment structure and to ccrtain of the forsgoing
porformance measurement methodologies, specifically funds transfer pricing,
wcre made during the first quarter of 2003,  Additienally, cffective January 1,
2003, the primary management responsibilities for the Company’s originated
home loan mortpage-backed securities portfolio were transferted from the Home
Loans and Insurance Scrvices Group to the Company’s corporatc trecasury
operations.

The 10Q:03 Form 10-Q) also contuined representations that the Company maintained adequate
systems of internal operational controls as well as adequate systems of risk management and
fiscal controls. In addition to the forcgoing, the 1Q:03 Form 10-Q also contained certifications
by defendants Killinger and Casey purporiing Lo certily the veracity of the Company’s financial

statements.
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37.  The slatements made by defendants to the investing public in late-April and early-
May 2003, including these statements contaimed n the Company’s 1Q:03 Form 10-() filed with
the SEC, referenced above, were cach materially false and misleading when made and were
known by defendants to be false or were deliberately disregarded as such thereby at that time, lor
the reasons stated herewin in ] 35, supra.

38, 2Q:03 Results, On July 15, 2003, Washington Mutual published a release on
Business Wire which purported to announce record setting financial results for the second quarter
of 2003, the peniod ending June 34, 2002, in part, as follows:

Based on the company’s continued strong operating fundamentals, financial
performance and capital gencrating ability, Washington Mutual’s Board of
Darectors declared a cash dividend of 40 cenls per share on the company’s
common stock, up 33 percent or 10 cents from 30 cenls per share in the previous
quarter. The company bhas now ncreased 1ts cash dividend for 32 consecutive
quarters.

“The board’s decision to significantly increase the cash dividend reflects the
overall strength of our business and capital position as well as management’s
continued commitment to creating sharcholder value,” said Kerry Killinger, the
company’s chairman, president and CEQO. “In addition, the recent reduction in the
tax ratc on dividend income allows us to more cificicntly rcturn capital to our
shareholders.”

Killinger emphasized that in addition to the higher dividend payout, the company
18 mainlaiming its stated growth largels.

H W W

“Building on first quarter’s momentum, Washinglon Mulual’s balanced busmess
model continued to deliver sirong resulis in the second quarier,” said Killinger.
“Our record-breaking results reflect the strength of our underlving strategy of
serving the broad middls market. We arc extremely proud of the results that our
talented employees have produced.”

39, 20Q:03 Form 10-Q. On or about August 14, 2003, defendants filed with the SEC

the Company's quartcrly financial report pursnant to Form 10-Q. The 2Q:03 Form [0-QQ also
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contained representations that the Company maintained adequate systems of internal operational
controls as well as adequate systems of risk management and fiscal controls. In addition to the
foregoing, the 2Q:03 Form 10-Q also containcd certifications by defendants Killinger and Casey
purporting to certify the veracity of this report which were substantially similar, if not identical,
to those certifications previously cxceuted ny these defendants and filed along with the
Company’s 1Q:03 Form 10-Q.

40,  The statements made by defendants to the investing public during investor
conforences in June 2003, as well as those statements contained in the Company’s July 15, 2003
release and its 2Q:03 Form 10-Q) filed with the SEC, referenced above, were each materially
false and misleading when made and were known by defendanis lo be false, or werce deliberatcly
disregarded as such thereby at that time, for the reasons stated hercin in Y] 35, supra.

41.  Realignment. In an cffort to further condition investors to believe that ths
Company continued to employ sufficient controls and procedures so as to assurc the accuracy
and truth of the Company’s public disclosures, on September 30, 2003, defendants published a
release on Business Wire, which purportcd to announce a Realignment *Intended to Drive
Growth and Streamhng Operations,” which stated m part, the following:

Washington Mutual Realigns Business Units; Move Intended To Drve Growth
and Strcamline Opcrations

In a movce that continues its evolution toward becoming America’s leading retailer
ol financial services, Washington Mutual, Inc. (NYSE:WM) announced today its
plans to align 1ts primeipal business umis around the company’s primary customer
groups of retall consumers and commercial clients.

The realipnment is designed to:
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- Create a more highly intcgrated and unifted retailing strategy to maximmze
i household growth and multiple product relationships with customers throughout
2 the United States:
3 - Deliver a superior customer expcricnee across all delivery channels; and
4 - Streamline and simplify operations, driving efficiencies and operational
cxccllence thronghout the company.
5
*  * %
6
7 Under the new struclure, 18-ysar Washinglon Mutual veteran Deanna
Oppenheimer, president of the company’s Banking and Financial Services group,
8 will manage the company’s largest retail consumer businesses of retail banking,
9 home lending, consumer insurance services and its retail brokerage services.
* * #*
10
Under Oppenheimer’s dircction, Washington Mutual’s rctail banking group has
11 produced consistent double-digit growth in deposition and fee income while
growing the company’s basc of rctail checking acecounts by some 1.8 million aver
12 the past 18 months, ending at June 30, 2003 at 7.6 million. Washinglon Mutual is
13 also on track to open 250 financial center stores in 2003,
14 # & &
15 “We have solid, proven managemaent teams in both our retail bankimg and home
lending businesses,” Oppcenheimer said. “Qur management tearn will be focused
16 on accclerating houschold growth and cross-sales, driving operalional excellence
17 and taking advantage of the natural synergies that exist in the two complementary
businesses.”
18 _ :
42 30:03 Results, On Octeber 21, 2003, Washmgton Mutual published a release on
16
Business Wire which purported to announce record sctting {inancial results for the third quarter
20
91 1 of 2003, the period ending Scptember 30, 2003, in parl, as follows:
23 “Continued growth of accounts and our key loan partfolios, and the expansion of
our national franchise led to another solid quarter for the company™ said Kerry
23 Killinger, Washington Mutual’s chairman, president and CEQ. “Although the
peniod was marked by significant volatility in interest ratcs, we continued to sce
24 positive trends in the key drivers of our busincss.”
25
26
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43. The statements made by defendants to the investing public and contained in the
Company’'s September 30, 2003 release and its October 21, 2003 release, were each materially
lalse and misleading when made and were known by defendants to be [alse, or were deliberately
disregarded as such thereby at that time, lor the reasons stated herein in ] 35, supra.

44,  3Q:03 Form 10-Q. Later, on November 14, 2003, defendants also ftled with the
SEC thc Company’s quarterly financial rcport pursnant to Form 10-Q. In addition to making
many of the same, or substantially similar, representations to these made previously on October
21, 2003, the 3Q:03 Formt 10-Q also contained representations that the Company maintained
adequate systems of intemal operational controls as well as adequate systems of risk
management and fiscal controls. In addition to the forcpoing, the 30Q:03 Form 10-Q also
contained certilications by delendants Killinger and Casey purparbimg to certify the: truth of the
Company's financial statements to certify the veracity of this report which were also
substantially similar, il not identical, to those cerlifications previously executed by these
defendants and filed along with the Company’s 1Q:03 and 2Q:03 Forms 10-().

45.  The statements made by defendants and contained in the Company’s 3(:03 Form
10-Q) filed with the SEC, refoerenced above, were materially false and msleadimg when made and
were known by defendanty to be false, or were deliberately disregarded as sucht thercby at that
time, for the reasons stated herein in Y] 33, supra.

46,  Moderate Revision: Continning Misrepresentations. On December 9, 2003,
Washington Mutual issued a release which purported to reaflirm and moderately adjust
defondants’ growth initiatives and guidance for 2004, and which also announced massive cost

reduction and growth initiatives campaign, in parl, as follows:
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Washington Mutual, Inc. (NYSE: WM) today announced that in light of lower
L mortgage loan volume, increasingly compelitive pricing i the morlgage market
2 and a greater emphasis on the onigination of adjustable-rate mortgages by the
company, pain from mortgage loans will be significantly lower in the fourth
3 quarter than in the sccond quarter ol 2003, As a result, the company cxpects
earnings per diluted share for 2003 (o range belween $4.15 and $4.25, up from
4 earmngs of §4.02 per diluled share 1n 2002
3 In light of the changed conditions and uncertam outlook for the mertgage market,
5 the company also said it will broaden its outlook for diluted carnings per share for
2004 to a range of $4.30 10 $4.80.
/ “*Washington Mutual benefiled from extraordinary mortgage volumes over the
- past few years, which allowed us to fund the expansion of a national retail
banking franchise and multi-family lending business while producing solid
9 garnings growth,” said Kemry Killinger, chairman, president and chief executive
10 officer, who spoke at the company’s investor day th New York, “Now that the
mortgage market has clearly slowed, we are adjusting our business to adapi to the
11 new realites of the cumrent environment. Therefore, we are taking steps to
substantially reduce operating costs and streamline and improve opcrations 1o
12 drive cfiiciency, cnhance customer service and continue the growth of our leading
3 national franchise.”
14 Fourth Quarter 2003 Trends
15 The company said its morlgage volume in the fourth quarter is projected to
decrease by approximately 50 percent from third quarter levels. Competitive
16 pricing pressurc throughout the fourth quarter has also eroded the expected gain
from morigage loans. Washinglon Mutual’s average gain per loan, net of risk
17 management instruements, was 47 basis points in this vear’s second quarter and is
estimated 1o decline to approximately 10 basis points in the fourth quarter. In
18 addition, Washington Mutual has recently placed greater cmphasis on the
19 origination of adjustable-rale mortgages for portfolio, a core strength of the
' company, further reducing the opportunity for gain from mortgage loans.
20
* Ed *
21
- 2004 Plans for Efficiencies, Continued Growth
o | As partdof its Drgan_izational _reali gnment, the company has s:tepped up its pla:ns to
. streamline  operations, gam  added efficiency, and improvc opcrational
24 performance. Together with the cost savings cfforts in the mortgage business,
these initiatives will provide Washington Mulual with opportunities for further
25 growih 1n 1is core consumer and conunercial busincsscs.
26
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Key elements of the 2004 plan include:

Identifying and eliminating approximately 31 billion in noninterest expense over a
stx-quarter time period, beginning in thé lirst quarter of 2004. By mid-2005, the
company’s actual level of expenses is expected to fully reflect these cost
rcductions, but also the effects of normal inflation, business volumes, growth
imitiatives and any potential acquisitions. The $1 billion of cost reductions
represents approximately 13 percenl of the company’s projecled annualized
noninterest expense base for the fourth quarter of 2003, The cost reductions will
be accomplished by completing the full integration of Washington Mutual’s
mortgage acquisitions from 2001 and 2002, as well as capturing significant cost
saving epporiumities company-wide.

& & &
Implcmentation of a scrics of initiatives to drive operational cxecllence

throughout the company to gain added productivily and continuously trmprove
upon the company’s customer service levels.

“Wec are instilling a discipline of opcrational cxcellence as we work to make
further inroads to be a low-cost leader in our industry,” Killinger said.  “Qur
management team is now more focused than ever on driving process efficiency
and reducing cyclc times to improve our operational performance and customer
service levels throughout the organization.”™

47.  The statements made by defendants and contained in the Company’s December 9,
2003 release, referenced above, were each matcrially [alse and misleading when made and were

known by defendants o be False, or were dehberately disregarded as such thereby at that time,

for the reasons stated herein in [ 35, supra.

48.  Moderate Analysts Revisions. As evidence that defendants’ December 9, 2003
release did nol commumicate to investors the true scope of the adverse conditions which were the
Iav:h*t:rsely impacting the Company, immediatcly lollowimg the publication of this release, Fiich
debt rating service did not lower its rating on the Company’s debt or adjust its eredit rating in
any way. Morcover, at thal time, analysts at Citigroup and USBancorp, among othcrs, only

moderately adjusted their EPS estimates and near term price targets to account for defendants’
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minor rcvisions.  Accordingly, at that time, Citigroup lowered its 2003 estimate to $4.18 per
share, from $4.40. and 2004 EPS cstimate to $4.35, from $4.76 per share; lowenng ils near-ierm
market cap estimate to approximately $44 billion. USBancorp loweted 1ts 2003 and 2004 EPS
estimates to $4.18 and $4.40, respectively, from $4.41 and $4.75, respectively; lowering its near-
term price targetl to $42 per share, representing & market capitalization forccast of approximately
$42 hillion.

49, 4Q and FY:03 Results. On January 20, 2004, Washington Mutunal published a
release on Business Wire which purported to announce record setting financial results for the
fourth quarter and full year 2003, the period ending December 31, 2003, as follows:

“The fourth quarter of 2003 brought to a closc a successiil year in which we
continued to profitably expand our key businesses mahionally and enhance the
value of our franchise,” said Kemry Killinger, the company’s chairman, president
and CEQ. “Wc continucd to scc marked improvement in our credit position as
the year progressed as well. While 2003 was a solid year for our company, rising
interest rates for mortgages in the second half of the year placed pressure on our
business results. Our management team is meeting the challenge head on, as
reflected in the $180 million of technology write-downs and scverance charges
taken during the fourth quarter, and we expect our cliorts to reduce costs will
contribule 1o our results 1 20047

BOARD OF DIRECTORS INCREASES CASH DIVIDEND

Based on the company’s continued strong operating fundamentals and financial
performance, Washington Mutual’s Board of Directors declarcd a cash dividend
of 42 cents por sharc on the company’s commeon stock, up [rom 41 cents per share
m the previous quarter. [hvidends on the common stock are payable on February
13, 2004 to sharsholders of record as of January 30, 2004,

50. FY:2003 Form 10-K. On or about March 15, 2004, defendanis filed with the
SEC the Company’s year cnd financial report pursuant to Form 10-K. In addition to making
many of the same or substantially similar representations 1o those made previously on January

20, 2004, the FY:2003 Form 10-K also contamed represenlations thal the Company maintained
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adcquate systems of intcrnal operational controls as well as adequate systems of risk
management and fiscal controls. Tn addition to the forcgoing, the FY:2003 Form 10-K also
contained certifications by defendants Killinger and Casey purporting to certily the veracity of
this report which were also substantially similar, il not wlentical, to thosc certifications
previously executed by these defendants during the Class Period.

51.  The statements made by delendants and contained in the Company’s January 20,
2004 rclease and in its FY:2003 Form 10-K filed with the SEC, referenced above, were each
materially false and migleading when made and weve known by defendants 10 be false, or were
deliberately disregarded as such thereby at that time, for the reasons stated herein in [ 35, supra.

52, 1Q:04 Results. On April 19, 2004, Washington Mutual published a release on
Business Wire which purported to announce continued stromy financial results for the first
quarier of 2004, the period ending March 31, 2004, as follows:

Based on the company’s continued strong opcrating fundamentals and financial

performance, Washinglon Mutual's Board ol Directors declarcd a cash dividend

of 43 cents per share on the company’s cormnmon stock, up from 42 cents per sharc

previously. Dividends on the common stock are payable on May 14, 2004 to

shareholdets of record as of April 30, 2004,

Key highlights:

The company’s results were led by strong growth in its Retail Banking and

Finanecial Services busincss, whose net income inereased by 23 percent year over

year,

The net interest margin remamed essentially unchanged at 2.89 pereent due to

stable short-term ratcs and the company’s successful interest rate risk
management activities.

53. 1Q:04 Form 10-). On or abouwt May 10, 2004, defendants also filcd with the

SEC the Company's quarterly financial report pursuant lo Form 10-). n addition to making
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many of the same, or substantially similar, representations to those madc previously on April 19,
2004, the 1Q:04 Form 10-Q also containcd representations that the Company maintained

adequate systems of internal operatiomal controls as well as adequate systems of risk

management and fiscal controls. In addition to the loregoing, the 1Q:04 Form 10-Q also
contained certifications by defendants Killinger and Cascy purporting (o certify truth of the
Company’s financial statcmenis which were also substantially similar, if not identical, to those
certifications previously executed by these defendants during the Class Period.

54.  The statements madc by defendants and contained in the Company’s April 19,
2004 releasc and s 1Q:04 Form 10-Q filed with the SEC, referenced above, wore cach
materially false and misleading when made and were known by defendants to he false, or were
deliberately disregarded as such thereby at that time, for the rcasons staled herein in {35, supra.

THE TRUFE. FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL CONDITION
OF WASHINGTON MUTUAL IS DISCLOSED

55. On June 29, 2004, Washington Mutual issued a release which surprised and
alarmed investors. Om that day, defendants suddenly anmounced a very significant eamnings and
net income shortfall which [ar exceeded any guidance previously sponsored and endorsed by
+ defendants, as follows:;

Washington Mutual Adjusts Fammings Outlook for 2004; Rising Interest Ratcs
Impact Mortgage Bankmyg; Growth in Rotail Banking & Financial Scrvices
Continues

Washington Mutual, Inc. (NYSE: WM) today announced that expectaticns for a
sustained increase in long-term interest rates will significantly émpact the
company's Morigage Banking business resulting in 2004 earnings below
previous guidance. Higher interest rates have lowered the company’s mortgage
production expectations at a timc when cost reduction plans have not yel fully
taken effect. The risc in interest rales 1s not expected to have a material effect on
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. the 2004 performance of the company’s Retail Banking & Financial Services and
Commercial (Group businesses.
2 “It now appears to us that the shifl in the interest rate environment in rccent
3 months, with a sharp mocrease m long-term rates and a rclated reduction in
mortgage volumes, will continue through the rest of the year. The effects of these
4 changes are likely to outpace the timing of ongoing cost reduction plans in our
Mortpape Banking business,” said Kerry Killinger, Chairman, President and Chief
5 Executive Qfficer.
6 “We're disappointed in this chanpe in our 2004 outlook and we will not be
7 satisfied until we have completed the resiving of our expense base and improved
the efficiency and performance of our Mortgage Banking busincss,” continued
8 Killinger. “At the same time, we will remain focused on cxecuting our core
middle-market retail strategy.”
9
10 Earnings for the full year are now estimated to range from $3.00 to $3.60 per
dituted share.
1 The following table provides additional detail on the company's expectations
12 regarding 2004 eamings composition, based upon the company’s operating
segment reporting. The 2004 estimale range is based on the assumption: that (he
13 Fed Funds rate will incrcase gradually by between 75 and 125 basis points during
the second hall of the year and that the 10-ycar tecasury yield will end the year
14 between 4.5 percent and 5.0 percent:
15 Earnings Per Diluted Share
16 2003 Actual 1004 Actyal 2004 Estimate
Mortgage Banking $1.44 $0.25 $(0.15)-$0.35
17 Rest of Washington Mutual $2.77 $0.93 $3.15-8325
18 Total 54,21 $1.18 $3.00-%3.60
19 56.  $5.0 Billion in Market Cap. Eviscerated. Following the publication of the
20 Company’s surprising and belated release, shares of the Company fell precipitously, reducing its
21
market capitalization by nearly $5 billion in after-market trading, Washington Multual
22
2 common shares fell to $36.50 per sharc, from a closing price of $41.31 per share on June 29,
24 2004, a decline of ncarly 12%. The decline in the price of the Company’s common shares also
25 || had a dramatic, ncgative irnpact on the value of the Company’s options and other sccurities.
26
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57. The market for Washington Mutual's securitics was open, wcll-developed and
elficient al all relevant times. As a result of these materially false and misleading statements and
failurcs to disclose, Washinglon Mutual securities traded at artificially inflated prices during the
Class Period. Plaintiff and other members of the Class purchased or otherwisc acquired
Washington Mutnal securities and/or sold put options relying upon the inlegniy of the market
price of Washington Mutual sccuritics and markel mfonmation relating to Washington Mutual,
and havc been damaged thereby.

38. During the Class Period, defendants materially misled the investing public,
thereby inflating the price of Washington Mutual sccurities by publicly issuing falsc and
misleading statements and omitting to disclose material facts neccssary to make defendants’
statements, as sct forth heremn, not false and mislecading. $aid statements and omissions were
materially false and misleading in that they failed to disclose material adverse information and
misrepresented the truth about the Company, its business and operations, as alleged herein.

59, At all relevant limes, the material misrepresentations and omissions particularized
in this Complaint directly or proximatcly caused or were a substantial contributing cause of the
damages sustained by plaintiff and other members of the Class. As descnibed herein, during the
Class Period, defendants made or caused to be madc a scries of materially false or mislcading
statements about Washington Mutual’s business, prospects and operations. These material
misslatements and omissions had the cause and effect of ercating in the market an unrealistically
positive assessment of Washington Mutual and its business, prospeets and operations, thus
causing (he Company’s securtlies to be overvalued and artificially inflated at all rclevant times,

Defendants’ malenally false and misleading statements during the Class Period resulted in
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plaintiff and other members of the Class purchasing the Company’s securitics and/or selling put
options at artificially nflated prices, thus causing the damages complained of herein.

Applicability Of Presumption Of Reliance:
Fraud-On-The-Market Doctrine

60. At all relevant times, the market for Washington Mutual’s sccurilies was an
¢fficient market for the following reasons, among others:

(a) Washington Mutual’s securitics met the requiremcnts lor listing, and was
listed and actively traded on the New York Stock Exchange, a highly efficient and aotomated
market,

{b) As a regulated issucr, Washington Mutual filed periodic pubhc reports
with the SEC and the New York Stock Exchange;

() Washington Mutual regularly communicated with public investors vig
established market communication mechanisms, including through regular disseminations ol
press releases on the national circuits of major newswire services and through other wide-
ranging public disclosurcs, such as communications with the financial press and other similar
reporting services; and

(d) Washington Mutual was followed by several secunities analysts employed
by major brokerage firm{s) who wrote reports which were distributed to the sales force and
certain customers of their respective brokerage firm(s). Fach of these reports was publicly
available and entcred the public marketplace.

61.  As a resultl of the foregomg, the market for Washington Mutual secuﬁlies
promptly digesied current information regarding Washington Mutual from all publicly available
sources and refleeted such information in ‘Washington Mutual sceurities prices. Under these
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circumstances, all purchascrs and/or sellers of Washington Mutual securities during the Class
Period suffercd similar injury through their purchase of Washinglon Mutual sccurities and/or salc

of put options at artificially inflated prices and a presumption of rcliance applies.

NO SAFE HARBOR

62, The statulory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statcments under certain
circumstances does not apply lo any of the allegedly false statcments pleaded in this complaint.
Many of the specific statements pleaded herein were not identificd as “forward-looking
slatements” when made. To the exlent there were any forward-looking slatements, there were no
mcaningful cautionary stalements identifying important factors that could cause actual results 1o
differ materially from those in the purportedly forward-looking statermnents. Alternatively, to the
extent that the statutory safe harbor docs apply to any forward-looking statements pleaded
herein, defendants arc lable for thosc false forward-looking statements because at the time each
of those forward-looking statcments was made, the parlicular speaker knew that the particular
forward-looking statcment was falsc, and/or the forward-looking statement was authorivzed
and/or approved by an executive olficer of Washington Mutual who knew that those statements

were false when made.

BASIS OF ALLEGATIONS

63.  Plamiff has alleged the followimg based upon the investigation of plaintiffs
counscl, which included 2 review of SEC filings by Washington Mutual, as well as regulatory
filings and reports, securities analysts’ reports and advisories about the Company, press releascs

and other public statcments issued by the Company, and media reports about the Company, and
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plaintilf believes that substantia] additional evidentiary support will exist for the allegations sat

forth herein after a reasonable opportunity for discovery.

FIRST CLAIM

Violation Of Section 10(b) Of
The Exchange Act And Rule 10b-5

Promuleated Thereunder Against All Defepdants

64,  Plaintil repeats and rcalleges each and every allegation contained above as if
fully set forth herein,

65.  During the Class Period, defendants carricd out a plan, scheme and course of
conduct which was intended to and, throughout the Class Period, did: (i) deceive the investing
public, including plaintiff and other Class members, as alleged herein; and (ii) causcd plamiiff
and other members of the Class to purchase Washington Mulual securitics and/or sell put options
at artificially inflated priccs. In furthevance of this unlawful scheme, plan and coursc of conduct,
defendants, jointly and individually (and cach of them,) took the actions set forth herein.

66.  Defendants (1) employcd devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (b) made
untrue statements of material fact and/or omitted to state material facts necessary to make the
statements not misleading; and {c) engaged in acts, practices, and a course ol business which
operated as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of the Company’s secunties and/or scllers of
put options in an effort to maintain artificially high market prices for Washington Mutual’s
securitics int violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchangc Act and Rule 10b-5. All defendants are
sued either as primary participanis in the wrongful and illegal conduct charged herein or as

controlling persons as alleged below.
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67.  Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the usc, means
or instrumentalitics of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, cngaged and participated in a
continuous course ol conduct to conceal adversc material information about the business,
operations and future prospeets of Washington Mutual as specified herein.

68.  These defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud, while in
possession of material adverse non-public information and engaged in acts, practices, and a
coursc of conduct as alleged herein in an ¢ffort to assure invesiors of Washington Mutual’s valuc
and performance and continued substantial growth, which included the making of, or the
participation in the making of, untrue statcments ol thalerial facts and omitting to statc material
facts necessary in order to make the stalements made about Washington Mutual and its business
operations and future prospecis mn the light of the circumstances under which they were made,
not mislcading, as set forth more particularly herein, and engaged in transactions, practices and a
course of business which opcrated as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of Washington
Mutual securitics during the Class P.‘eriod.

69.  Each of the Individual Defendants’ primary liability, and controlling person
liability, arises from the following facts; (1) the Individual Defendants were high-level executives
and/or directors at the Company during the Class Period and members of the Company’s
management team or had control thereof, (ii) each of thesc defendants, by virtue of his
responsibilities and activities as a senior officer and/or director of the Company was privy to and
participated in the creation, development and reporting of the Company’s internal budgets, plans,
projections and/or reports; (iii) each of these defendants enjoyed significant personal contact and

familianiy with the other defendants and was advised of and had access to other members of the
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Company’s management tcam, intemal reports and other data and information about the
Company’s finances, operations, and sales at all relevant times; and (iv) each of these defendants
was aware of the Company’s dissermination of information to the investing public which they
knew or deliberately disregarded was materially false and misleading.

70.  The dcfendants had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions of
material facts set forth herein, or acted with deliberate disrcgard for the (ruth in that they failed to
[ascertain and to disclose such facts. Such defendants’ material misrepresentations and/or
omissions were done knowingly or deliberately and for the purpose and effect of concealing
Washington Mutual’s operating condition and futurc business prospects from the iﬁvesting
public and supporting the artificially inflated price of its sccuritics. As demonstrated by
defendants’ overstatements and misstatenients of the Company’s busincss, operations and
carnings throughout the Class Pertod, defendants, if they did not have aclual knowledge of the
misrepresentations and onmssions alleged, deliberalely disregarded their obligation to obtain such
knowledge by dehberately refraining from taking thosc steps necessary to discover whether those
statements were falsc or misleading.

71. As aresult of the dissemination of the materially false and misleading information

and failure to disclose material facts, as set forth above, the market price of Washington Mutual
securities was artificially mflated during the Class Pertod. In lgnorance of the fact that market
prices of Washinglon Mutyal's publicly-traded securitics was artificially inflated, and relying
dircetly or mdirectly on the false and mislcading stalements made by defendants, or upon the
integrity of the market in which these secunties trade, and/or on the absence of material adverse

information that was known 1o or deliberately disregarded by defendants but not disclosed in
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public statcments by defendants during the Class Period, plaintiff and the other members of the
Class acquired and/or sold Washington Mutual securities during the Class Period at artificially
high prices and were damaged therchy.

72, Atihe time of said misrcpreseniations and omissions, plaintiff and other members
of the Class were ignorant of their falsity, and believed them to be truc. Had plaintiff and the
other members of the Class and the marketplace known the truth regarding the problcms that
Washington Mutual was experiencing, which were not disclosed by defendants, plantiff and
other members of the Class would not have purchascd or otherwise acquired their Washington
Mutual sceurities, or, if they had acquited such securities during the Class Period, and/or if they
had scld put options, they would not have done so at the artificially inflated prices.

73. By virtue of the foregoing, delendants have violated Section 10(b) of the
Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgaied thereynder.

74.  As a dircet and proximate result of defendants’ wrongful conduct, plaintiff and
the other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their respactive purchascs

and sales of the Company’s securitics during the Class Pcriod.

SECOND CLATM

Violation Of Section 20(a) Of
The Exchange Act Against Individual Defendants

75.  Plaintiff repeats and rcalleges each and evcry allegation contained above as if
fully set forth herein.
76. The Individual Defendanis acted as centrolling persons of Washinglon Mutuat

within the meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as alleged herein. By virtue of their
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high-level positions, and their ownership and contractual mights, participation in and/or
awarcness of the Company’s operations and/or intimate knowledge of the false {inancial
statements filed by the Company with the SEC and disseminated to the mvesting public, the
Individual Defendants had the power to influence and control and did mflusnce and conirol,
directly or indircctly, the decision-making of the Company, including the content and
dissetmination of the various statements which plaintiff contends are false and misleading. The
Individual Defendants werc provided with or had unlinuted access to copies of the Company’s
reports, press releases, public filings and other stalements alleged by plantiff to be misleading
prot to and/or shortly after these stalements were issued and had the ability to provent the
issuance of the statements or cause the statcments to be corrccted.

77.  In particular, each of these defendants had direct and supetvisory mvolvement m
the day-to-day operations of the Company and, therefore, 1s presumed to have had the power to
control or influence the particular transactions giving risc to the secyrities violations as alleged
herein, and excreised the SAIme.

78, As set forth above, Washington Mutual and the Individual Defendants each
violated Section 10(b} and Rule 10b-5 by their acts and omissions as alleged in this Complaint.
By virtue of their positions as controlling persons, the Individual Defendanis are liable pursuant
to Section 20{a) of the Exchange Act, As a direct and proximate result of defendants® wrongful
conduct, plamtiff and other members of the Class suifered damages it connection with their
purchases and/or sales of the Company’s securities during the Class Period.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays lor velief and judgment, as follows:
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A. Determining that this action is a proper class aclion, designating plainiiff
” as Lead Plaintifl" and certifying plaintilT as a class representative under Rule ZB.Df the Federal
Rules of C1vil Procedure and plautiff’s counsel as Lead Counsel;

B. Awarding compensatory damages in favor of plaintiff and the other Class
members against all defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustamed as a resull of
defendants”™ wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, meluding interest thereon,

C. Awarding plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses
incurred in this action, including counsel fees and cxpert fees;

D. Awarding extraordinary, equitable and/or injunctive relief as permitted by
law, equity and the federal statutory p.mvisions sued hercunder, pursuant to Rules 64 and 65 and
any appropnate state law remedies to assurc that the Class has an cflective remedy; and

E. Such other and lurther relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
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1 JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plainti T hereby demands a trial by jury.

Dated: July 20, 2004
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